
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Audit Committee 

on Thursday, 6 October 2022, at 6.30 p.m. 

in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

 
Committee Membership 

 
Councillors 

 
Stephen Coleman (Chairman) 

Tracy Coward (Vice-Chairman) 

Pete Endsor 

Kevin Holmes 

Kevin Lancaster 

Matt Severn 

 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Wednesday, 28 September 2022 
 
Julia Krier, Legal, Governance and Democracy Senior Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Adam Moffatt 

 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Please note that this meeting will be preceded at 6.00 p.m. by an informal 
meeting of the Committee with representatives from both External and 

Internal Audit, without the presence of officers, also in the Georgian Room. 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  MINUTES  5 - 10 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 28 July 2022. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  AUDIT COMMITTEE 2022/23 WORK PROGRAMME (OCTOBER 2022)  11 - 14 

 To consider progress against the Committee’s 2022/23 Work Programme.  

6  AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE 
STATEMENT 2021/22  

15 - 32 

 To consider and authorise the signing of the Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
and the Letter of Representation following the external audit and to note the 
Annual Governance Statement Action Plan. Please note, Appendices 1, 2, 4 & 5 
to the report are marked to follow. 

 

7  INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2022/23 (OCTOBER 2022)  33 - 60 

 To consider a summary of the progress in delivering the Internal Audit Annual 
Plan in 2022/23. 

 

8  EXTERNAL AUDIT OPINION ON ACCOUNTS - AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT   

 To consider the Audit Findings Report for the year ended 31 March 2021 issued 
by Grant Thornton (report to follow). 

 

9  OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES   

 To consider a verbal update from the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 
Officer). 

 



PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
28.07.2022 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the Lowther 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, Kendal, on Thursday, 28 July 2022, at 6.30 p.m. 
 

Present 

Councillors 
Tracy Coward (Vice Chair, in the Chair) 

  
Tracy Coward 
Pete Endsor 

Kevin Holmes 
Kevin Lancaster 

Kevin Lancaster  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Stephen Coleman (Chairman). 

Officers 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

John Davies Case Management Officer Support Services 

Julia Krier Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Adam Moffatt Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist 

Claire Read Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) 

Helen Smith Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

 
Also in attendance were Jane Butterfield (Internal Audit) and Hebe Dyson (External Audit). 
 

AUD/1 MINUTES  
 
Note – in response to a query raised under Minute No. AUD/45 regarding Taxi 
Licensing, Members were provided with a written response. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a record, the minutes of the meeting of the 

Committee held on 21 April 2022. 
 

AUD/2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were raised. 
 

AUD/3 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS  
 
There were no Excluded Items on the Agenda. 
 

AUD/4 TERMS OF REFERENCE  
 
Members raised a query regarding the Membership section of the Terms of Reference 
which had not been updated since the changes to the Membership of the Audit 
Committee. The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy Monitoring 
Officer) undertook to look into the matter. 
  
RESOLVED – That the Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee be noted subject to 
the update to the Membership section. 
 

Page 5

Item No.2



2 
28.07.2022 Audit Committee 
 

 

AUD/5 AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2022/23  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) introduced the Audit Committee 
2022/23 Work Programme and informed Members that the majority of the items noted in 
the Programme were included on the agenda for the meeting. She noted a few 
exceptions, which included the Audit Fee Letter, an update for which had been included 
within the External Audit Progress Report (July 2022) and the Annual Review of Anti-
Fraud Policy and Activity which had been delayed until the September meeting of the 
Audit Committee. 
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that the Bi-Annual 
Review of the Whistleblowing Policy would be removed from the Programme due to the 
limited time available to update the Policy with vesting day of the new Westmorland and 
Furness Council in April 2023. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress against the 2022/23 Work Programme be noted. 
 

AUD/6 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE  
 
The Case Management Officer (Support Services) presented the latest Strategic Risk 
Register. The Register contained all those risks above the line of risk tolerance. He 
explained that all risks above the line of tolerance had mitigations listed and the 
mitigations were designed to reduce the risk in terms of likelihood or impact or both and to 
reduce the risk from the current position on the matrix to the target position. 
 
The Case Management Officer (Support Services) informed Members that there were 7 
risks above the line of tolerance out of 18 risks which represented a change from Quarter 
4 of 2021/22. The increase in both the total number of risks and those above appetite was 
due to the identification of three new risks, each of which had been presented above the 
line of tolerance. The three new risks were:- 
 
(1) SLDC – Organisational Carbon Reduction Target – that South Lakeland District 

Council was not able to achieve the current Council Plan target of carbon neutrality 
by 2030; 

 
(2) SLDC – Whole District Carbon Reduction Target – that South Lakeland will not 

achieve its Council Plan target of carbon neutrality across South Lakeland by 
2037; and 

 
(3) Cost of Living Impacts on communities, Council operations and resources. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Strategic Risk Register, as at Appendix 1 to the report be noted. 
 

AUD/7 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) presented the updated Audit 
Committee Risk Register, with the Audit Committee having last reviewed the Risk 
Register in December 2021. 
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that the register 
currently had 4 live risks which were:- 
 

 challenges due to inexperience; 
 

Page 6



3 
28.07.2022 Audit Committee 
 

 

 inability to carry out statutory requirements; 
 

 the effectiveness of the Audit Committee due to the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic; 
and 
 

 the effectiveness of the Audit Committee being limited by the resource implications of 
implementation of Local Government Reorganisation in Cumbria and the risk of 
reduced support to the Committee due to increased service demands elsewhere in the 
organisation. 

 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) suggested that the risk relating to the 
impact of the Covid-19 pandemic could be archived as regular meetings of the Audit 
Committee had resumed, the payment of grants was coming to an end and that Internal 
and External Audit had been working effectively both in person and virtually. 
 
RESOLVED – That the updated Audit Committee Risk Register be noted. 
 

AUD/8 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS AND ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2021/22  
 
The Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) introduced the unaudited Statement 
of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2021/22. The unaudited statements had 
been approved by the Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) on 5 July 2022 and 
had been opened up to scrutiny and comment from the public between 8 July and 22 
August 2022. The 2021/22 accounts had the deadline of no later than 30 November, or as 
soon as reasonably practicable after the receipt of the auditors final report (if later than 30 
November) to be approved by Members and published. 
 
The Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) informed Members that the Annual 
Governance Statement was published in the same document as the Statement of 
Accounts and provided important context to the financial information as it set out how 
internal control had been exercised during the accounting period. A self-assessment of 
actions against the Local Code of Governance had been carried out and the AGS action 
plan was updated where the self-assessment had identified potential areas of 
improvement, both against the Local Code of Governance and the CIPFA Financial 
Management Code. 
 
It was anticipated that the final statements would be brought back to the September 2022 
meeting of the Audit Committee, with the Value for Money assessment being finalised 
later in the financial year.  
 
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist (Deputy Monitoring Officer) noted that 
an update to the wording in the first recommendation was required – the Committee would 
be asked to approve (rather than note) the unaudited statement of Accounts for 2021/22. 
 
In response to a query regarding public engagement on the Statement of Accounts, the 
Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) noted that there was little feedback from 
the public on this matter. The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) added that 
this had varied over the years and that due to many of the queries being dealt with by 
Freedom of Information requests during the year and being lowered by the fact that a lot 
of information had been published on the Council’s website. 
 

Page 7



4 
28.07.2022 Audit Committee 
 

 

RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 (including the Annual 

Governance Statement) be approved and the Annual Governance Statement 
Action Plan be noted; and 

 
(2) the response to the auditor risk assessment set out in Appendices 3 and 4 to the 

report be confirmed by management as a true reflection of the Council’s 
management processes. 

 

AUD/9 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22  
 
The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2021/22. 
Appendix 1 provided a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan as 
at July 2022. She explained that the head of Internal Audit was satisfied that the Council 
had reasonable and effective risk management, control and governance processes in 
place, with 4 reviews receiving Substantial Assurance, 8 reviews receiving Reasonable 
Assurance and 1 review receiving Limited Assurance as set out in Appendix 1 to the 
report. 
 
The Chief Executive thanked Internal Audit and External Audit for their work during a 
significant period of change with Local Government Reorganisation and the Covid-19 
pandemic impacting heavily on their work. Members echoed his comments. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the Head of Internal Audit’s opinion of reasonable assurance on the Council’s 

overall systems of governance, risk management and internal control for the year 
ended 31 March 2022 (set out in Appendix 1) be noted; 

 
(2) the progress achieved in 2021/22 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes of 

completed audit reviews be noted (set out in Appendix 1); 
 
(3) the Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of Internal Audit independence as required 

by the mandatory PSIAS be noted; and 
 
(4) the Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of conformance with the mandatory PSIAS 

be noted. 
 

AUD/10 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2022-23  
 
The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23. 
Appendix 1 of the report provided a summary of the progress achieved in completing the 
Internal Audit Plan as at July 2022. Members were informed that three reports had been 
finalised since the last meeting of the Audit Committee relating to project management, 
administration of grants and risk management. 
 
The Executive Summary relating to Project Management received a limited assurance, 
with one urgent action point, which related to central oversight of the project management 
function. Six further action points had been raised, with five being important and one being 
routine. 
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) noted that the scope of this audit had 
not included work on the ERDF Kendal Flood Alleviation Scheme or the payment of 

Page 8



5 
28.07.2022 Audit Committee 
 

 

Covid-19 Grants. Furthermore, she confirmed that staff had been engaged by the Council 
in areas that would help to improve the situation relating to project management for other 
schemes. 
 
The Executive Summary relating to the Administration of Grants received a reasonable 
assurance with five important action points and one routine action point. The Internal Audit 
Manager noted that the main action point related to procedures to ensure that key 
conditions of funding and any statutory requirements had been clearly identified and for 
monitoring compliance. 
 
The Executive Summary relating to Risk Management received a reasonable assurance 
with one important action point being raised, which related to Member training on the Risk 
Management Process and the importance of Member attendance at these sessions. The 
Internal Audit Manager noted that the training was effective and that overall the report was 
a positive one. 
 
The Internal Audit Manager drew members’ attention to the follow up review, which 
detailed 35 recommendations, which had been followed up on. Of those 35 
recommendations, 34% had been implemented with 23 outstanding recommendations 
with updates being provided by officers. 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) the progress achieved in 2021/22 and 2022/23 in completing the Audit Plan and 

the outcomes of completed audit reviews (set out in Appendix 1) be noted; 
 
(2) the attached audit reports ( in Appendix 2) be noted; and 
 
(3) summary progress achieved in implementing recommendations from previous 

Internal Audit Reviews (set out in Appendix 3) be noted. 
 

AUD/11 EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (JULY 2022)  
 
Hebe Dyson, External Audit, presented the Committee with a summary of the progress 
made by Grant Thornton in delivery their responsibilities as the Council’s External 
Auditors as at July 2022. The report also included details of emerging national issues and 
developments that might be relevant to the Council and an update on Audit Fees.  
 
In presenting the report, Ms. Dyson noted ongoing fieldwork and testing which had begun 
on the Council’s draft financial statements. It was anticipated that the Auditor’s Annual 
Report would be issued between September 2022 and December 2022. 
 
RESOLVED – That the progress made by External Auditors be noted. 
 

AUD/12 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES  
 
The Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) informed Members that the Revenue 
and Capital Outturn reports had been approved by Cabinet and Council in July and that 
normally work would have been underway on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan, 
but this was no longer required due to Local Government Reorganisation. She drew 
members’ attention to the significant amount of work currently underway, including initial 
work on the budget process of the new Westmorland and Furness Council. Work on the 
Audit Committee’s responsibilities in the new authority was being undertaken, with a 

Page 9



6 
28.07.2022 Audit Committee 
 

 

working group ensuring that tasks had been completed and that the audit process is 
functioning in time for vesting day for the Westmorland and Furness authority. 
 
Members thanked officers for their work, noting that it gave them great confidence in the 
winding down of South Lakeland District Council and the progress being made with the 
Westmorland and Furness authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 7.05 p.m. 

Page 10



06/10/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2022/23 WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Lead Officer 28 July 2022 06 October 
2022 

8 Dec 2022 2 March 
2023 

Committee Administration 

Committee Terms of Reference Adam Moffatt √    

Set work programme for coming year Helen Smith     

Review progress against work programme  Helen Smith √ √ √ √ 

Training – to be arranged as necessary outside meetings  Helen Smith √ As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report:  Helen Smith/Chair    
√ (referral to 

Council) 

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Adam Moffatt  √   

External Audit      

Annual Audit Letter Gareth Kelly   √ (2021/22)  

Grant Certification Report (Housing Benefits) Gareth Kelly    √ (2021/22) 

Opinion Audit Plan Gareth Kelly    √ (2022/23) 

Audit Fee Letter Gareth Kelly 

√ (2021/22) 

(included in 
External Auditor 

Update) 

   

External Auditor Update Gareth Kelly √  √ √ 

P
age 11

Item
 N

o.5



06/10/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2022/23 WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Lead Officer 28 July 2022 06 October 
2022 

8 Dec 2022 2 March 
2023 

Internal Audit      

Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including review of Internal 
Audit Charter) 

Peter Harrison     

Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison 2021/22 √   2022/23 √ 

2022/23 Internal Audit Plan Progress, Individual Internal 
Audit Reports and Recommendation Follow Up Report 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √ 

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith    √ 

Accounts      

Approve the 2021/22 draft Statement of Accounts Claire Read √    

Approve the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts, Annual 
Governance Statement and Action Plan 

Sign letter of representation 

Helen Smith  
√ (details to 

follow) 
  

2021/22 Statement of Accounts - Receive external auditor’s 
opinion on Accounts (Audit Findings Report & Financial 
Resilience Report) 

Gareth Kelly  
√ (AFR to 

follow) 
  

Review Accounting Policies for 2022/23 Statement of 
Accounts 

Claire Read    √ 

Regulatory Framework      

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith   √ (for W&F)  

P
age 12



06/10/2022 AUDIT COMMITTEE 

2022/23 WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 Lead Officer 28 July 2022 06 October 
2022 

8 Dec 2022 2 March 
2023 

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity Helen Smith √ √ √  

Review Whistleblowing Policy (Bi-annual) Helen Smith 

Propose delete 
– new policy to 
be prepared for 

W&FC 

   

Review of Performance and Risk Management Framework Simon McVey Reviewed April 22 

Review of Operational Risks above the line of risk tolerance  Simon McVey Reviewed April 22 

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √  √  

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √  √  

Review Local Code of Governance and AGS Action Plan 
Helen Smith/Linda 

Fisher 
  

√ (if 
required) 

 

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith   √  

Financial Issues      

Update of significant financial issues not covered elsewhere 
on the agenda 

Helen Smith As required 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 10 October 2022 

Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement 2021/22 

 

Portfolio:   Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Section 151 Officer 

Report Author: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

   Claire Read – Finance Specialist (Deputy Section 151 Officer) 

Wards:  (All Wards); 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: The Statement of Accounts is one of the key corporate 
documents produced by the Council to demonstrate its financial position and performance. 
This underpins all Council priorities. 
 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 It is expected that a Statement of Accounts, subject to final audit opinion, will be 
approved by the end of October 2022, well ahead of the statutory deadline of 30 
November 2022. In accordance with statutory requirements, publication will be as 
soon as reasonably practical after receiving the audit opinion.  

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that on receiving the updated information Audit Committee: 

 (1) approve the Statement of Accounts; 

(2) approve the letter of representation; 

(3) authorise the Chair of the Audit Committee to sign the letter of 
representation and the Statement of Accounts on behalf of the committee; 

(4) authorise the Chairman to re-sign the Statement of Accounts in the event of 
further amendments following the final audit findings report; 

(5) note the Annual Governance Statement action plan; and 

(6) note the External Audit action plan. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2022 amended the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015, changing the dates that authorities are required to prepare 
and publish its approved draft and audited accounts from 31st May and 31st July 
respectively, to 31st July and 30th November respectively for the 20221/22 accounts. 
As reported to Audit Committee in July 2022, the Council’s accounts were submitted 
to the External Auditor on 5 July 2022 in accordance with internal timelines, and 
significantly ahead of the revised statutory deadline.  

Page 15

Item No.6



3.2 The unaudited Statement of Accounts for 2021/22 were approved by the Finance 
Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) on 5 July 2022. The accounts are subject to 
public inspection (from 8 July – 22 August 2022) where the general public can raise 
objections, questions and comments with the External Auditor. The revised Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 2021/22 accounts should be considered 
and approved by members and published no later than the 30 November 2022 or as 
soon as reasonably practicable after the receipt of the auditor’s final report (if later 
than 30 November). 

3.3 The audit process is currently being finalised and a number of amendments have 
been identified.  These amendments are summarised in Appendix 1 to this report, 
which will be distributed on Friday 30 September 2022.  The significant changes are: 

a) Amended treatment of capital grants and s106 contributions.  Proper 
accounting practice requires different treatment where capital grants are 
received which have conditions which have not been met compared to capital 
grants where there are restrictions, whether met or not.  As a result, 
contributions from developers under s106 have been incorrectly treated as 
having restrictions on their use, rather than conditions, and therefore have 
been recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
(CIES) and then moved to earmarked reserves within the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.  These grants should have been treated as capital 
grants received in advance instead. 

b) Infrastructure Asset: it has been identified that assets relating to Stockbeck 
flood alleviation scheme were transferred to the Environment Agency in 2017 
but the asset register had not been updated for this transfer.  The assets were 
valued at £2.686m at 31 March 2022 in the draft accounts.  The transfer was 
approved by Cabinet on 18 September 2013. The transfer for nil consideration 
has been treated as a prior period adjustment in the amended accounts.  Full 
details are given Note 1 to the revised Statement of Accounts.  

3.4 The revised statement of accounts, including any further amendments agreed 
between officers and external audit, are being prepared and it is expected that they 
will be ready for distribution by 30 September 2022. It is expected that the Audit 
Findings Report will be ready at the same time and both will be circulated prior to the 
meeting. 

3.5  A small number of non-trivial disclosure changes are required and these will be 
included within the revised statements which will be distributed prior to this meeting 
of Audit Committee. These amendments will be detailed in the Audit Findings Report.  

3.6 The Audit Findings Report will cover only the review of the Statement of Accounts 
and associated documents.  The Value for Money review is being carried out 
separately and will be reported to a later meeting of Audit Committee. 

3.7  As part of the audit of the accounts the Council are required to issue a letter of 
Representation to the External Auditor. A copy of the letter will be distributed when 
available and form Appendix 2. This forms part of the overall assurance required by 
the external auditor in providing their opinion. This needs to be approved and signed 
by the Section 151 Officer and the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 
 

3.8  Published alongside the Statement of Accounts is the Annual Governance Statement 
(AGS).  The AGS will be re-signed by the Chief Executive and the Leader of the 
Council. A copy of the AGS action plan is attached as Appendix 3. Implementation 
of the actions will be monitored through the Audit Committee throughout 2022/23.  

 

Page 16



3.9 Included in External Audit’s finding’s report will be recommendations that have been 
agreed with management and progress will be reported on during the course of the 
2022/23 audit. A copy of these recommendations and managements response will be 
distributed when available and will form Appendix 4. 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Summary of amendments to the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts (to 
follow) 

2 Draft Letter of representation 2021/22 (to follow) 

3 Annual Governance Statement Action Plan 

4 Audit Action Plan (to follow) 

5 Audited Statement of Accounts and AGS 2021/22 (to follow) 

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 The unaudited statements were published on the Council’s website on 8th July 2022 
and were open to scrutiny and comment by members of the public from 8th July 2022 
until 22nd August 2022 in line with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and 
the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.  The unaudited statements were reported 
to Audit Committee on 28 July 2022. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The report does not present any alternative options; there is a statutory deadline of 
30 November 2022 for publication of the 2021/22 Statement of Accounts or as soon 
as reasonably practical after the receipt of the Audit Opinion. 

6.2 It is a requirement to follow proper accounting practice when preparing the Statement 
of Accounts.  There are alternative interpretations of proper accounting practice in 
some circumstances.  Officers have considered potential alternative treatments with 
external auditors and applied the treatment that is most appropriate based on 
professional judgement.  Areas where significant judgements are made are reported 
within the accounts. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There are no additional financial implications other than those contained in the report 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no direct human resource implications of this report 

Legal 

7.3 There are no direct legal implications of this report. The revised Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 require that the 2021/22 accounts should be considered and 
approved by members and published no later than the 30 November 2022, or as 
soon as reasonably practicable after the receipt of the auditor’s final report (if later 
than 30 November). 

The Monitoring Officer was involved and has contributed to both the AGS Action plan 
and the Annual Governance Statement. 

 

Page 17



Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment? No  

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: The 
Statement of Accounts and AGS are historic documents relating to activities that 
have occurred during 2021/22 

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

   X 

 Air Quality    X 

 Biodiversity    X 

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

   X 

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

   X 

 Active Travel    X 

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

   X 

 Jobs and levels of pay    X 

 Healthier high streets    X 

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

   X 

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing    X 

 Access to housing    X 

 Crime    X 

 Social connectedness    X 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No    

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons: The 
Statement of Accounts and AGS are historic documents relating to activities that 
have occurred during 2021/22. 

Page 18



7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0  N  

Disability P  0  N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0  N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0  N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0  N  

Race/ethnicity P  0  N  

Religion or belief P  0  N  

Sex/gender P  0  N  

Sexual orientation P  0  N  

Armed forces families P  0  N  

Rurality P  0  N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0  N  

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

The risk is that the accounts 
are 
not authorised, audited and 
published by the statutory 
deadline. 

The Council’s reputation 
for good financial 
governance may be 
diminished. 

External audit of accounts 
within statutory deadlines 
to provide Audit 
Committee with assurance 
that the accounts 
represent a true and fair 
view. 

Contact Officers 

Claire Read, Finance Specialist, 01539 793152, Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist, 01539 793147, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Statement of Accounts and Annual 

Governance Statement 2021/22 

reported to Audit Committee 28 July 

2022 

Agenda for Audit Committee on Thursday, 28 July 

2022, 6.30 p.m. (southlakeland.gov.uk)  

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer Report of S151 Officer Report of S151 Officer 

Monitoring Officer 27/09/2022 28/09/2022 

CMT n/a - 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist N/A 

Page 19

mailto:Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk
mailto:h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5167&Ver=4
https://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=5167&Ver=4


Circulated to Date sent 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 06/10/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 20



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

1 
 

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ACTIONS  

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 

- Ensuring members and officers behave with 
integrity and lead a culture where acting in the 
public interest is visibly and consistently 
demonstrated thereby protecting the reputation 
of the organisation: individual sign-off with 
regard to compliance with code 

3 All Managers 31/3/2022 31/3/2022 New annual appraisal process - 'Your Conversation' - 
being launched in 2021. This is supported by monthly 
121 meetings between line managers and team 
members. Values are confirmed, and Behaviours 
workshops are planned for 2021 which will most 
probably lead to an update on the Personal Qualities 
Framework 

A6 Use the Council’s shared values to act as a 
guide for decision making and as a basis for 
developing positive and trusting relationships 
within the Council; 

3 Monitoirng 
Officer 

31/03/2021 Complete The Review of Local Government Ethical Standards 
was reported to the Standards Committee in April 
2019. The Best practice recommendations have been 
considered and reported back to the Standards 
Committee in April 2021. This was at the same time 
that the Revised Member Code of Conduct was 
considered.  

A10 
 
 

Put in place arrangements to ensure that 
procedures and operations are designed in 
conformity with appropriate ethical standards, 
and to monitor their continuing compliance in 
practice; 
 
 

4 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/3/2022 Complete Engagement with all Services on the Constitution and 
any required changes. Establishment of Constitutional 
Working Group with Party Leaders ( first meeting took 
place 07/06/2021).Training Programme 2021/22 on 
Legal, Governance and Democracy for all staff. 

4 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Complete MO underpins personal behaviour with ethical values 
in relation to Code of Conduct Complaints against 
Members, established Standards Committee, following 
procedure and assessing complaints with Independent 
Person.  
Also advising fairly in relation to declarations of interest 
for both members and officers. 
Annual Review completed  
Meetings arranged with the Independent Person as 
required.  

P
age 21



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

2 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

Appointment and meetings with Independent Person 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

 Complete Planned programme of HR policy reviews currently 
underway - around 1/3rd completed: final policy 
updates to HR Committee in July 2022 

A12 Put in place arrangements so that conflicts of 
interest on behalf of members and employees 
can be avoided and put in place appropriate 
processes to ensure that they continue to 
operate in practice  

4 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Complete Regular training is provided on declaration of interest 
requirements for new members with refresher training 
for all members. 
Declaration advice provided at all meetings with 
dispensations in place as required and requested.  
Work this year to improve the related party disclosures 
linked to transparency of member support grants and 
other interests. 
Work required relating to raising the profile and 
awareness regarding officer decarations of interest, 
relaunch planned. Plus raising awareness regarding 
process. Form updated this year.  
 

A14 Actively recognise the limits of lawful activity 
placed on the Council by the ultra vires 
doctrine but also strive to utilise the Council’s 
powers to the full benefit of our communities; 

4 Monitoring 
Officer / All 
Managers 

31/03/2021 Complete Monitoring Officer reports quarterly to the Corporate 
Management Team on significant legal issues and 
cases of significance. With all case work we advise on  
vires (intra and ultra) doctrine and the MO ensures the 
Council acts within the vires doctrine. 
Quarterly reports continue, daily  advice and input on 
case work and legal advice provided on reports to 
meetings and decision making. 

P
age 22



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

3 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

A15 Observe all specific legislative requirements 
placed upon the Council as well as the 
requirements of general law, and in particular 
integrate the key principles of administrative 
law – rationality, legality and natural justice into 
the Council’s procedures and decision making; 

4 All Managers  31/03/2021 Complete Legal officers advise officers on points of law and 
through continued development and training. The MO 
and Legal Officers not only apply these principles 
within their department but across the Council and 
when advising Members 

A16 Put in place effective systems to protect the 
rights of staff. Ensure that policies for whistle 
blowing which are accessible to staff and those 
contracting with the authority, and 
arrangements for the support of whistle 
blowers, are in place 

3 Human 
Resources 
Manager / 
Section 151 
Officer 

31/3/2022  Whistleblowing policy last reviewed 2017/18: review 
was due in 2019/20 but has been delayed due to 
pressures of Customer Connect and Covid-19.  
The review has commenced and will be reported to 
Audit Committee when complete. 

A18 Use a statement of business conduct  to make 
its expectations clear to partners and external 
providers of services; 

3 Section 151 
Officer/Strategy 
Lead Specialist 

31/3/2022 31/3/2022 Although there is a Partnership Register, there 
appears to be no current policy to accompany 
To do: Development of External Arrangement 
Policy/Strategy/ Guidance 
UPDATE: Partnership Guidance is being presented to 
Audit Committee at its meeting on 8th December 2021 
for consideration and will be implemented after this. 

A19 Induction for new members and staff on 
standard of behaviour expected 

3 HR Lead 
Specialist 

31/12/2021 In progress Aim: provide induction programmes tailored to 
individual needs and opportunities for members and 
officers to update their knowledge on a regular basis. 
Induction process in place, with development 
opportunities boosted by recent provision of e-learning. 
Also, new Member Development Strategy currently 
going through approval process. 

A20 Assess the skills required by members and 
officers and make arrangements to agree a 
development plan to develop those skills and 
address any training gaps, to enable roles to 
be carried out effectively; 

4 All managers 31/10/2021 Complete 'new appraisal' approach, skills gap conversations, and 
Customer Connect Transition programme are 
underway 

P
age 23



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

4 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

A22 Ensure that professional advice on legal and 
financial matters is available and recorded well 
in advance of decision making and used 
appropriately when decisions have significant 
legal or financial implications. 

2 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Report includes sections for professional advice on 
legal, financial, HR and other areas.  Reports 
circulated to relevant officers, dates of advice recorded 
in report, all reports (except planning committee) 
considered and approved by Corporate Management 
Team before cleared for publication. However, current 
legal case management system needs addressing. 
Urgent need for adequate legal case management 
system. 
Meetings of Statutory Officers  in place  

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

B1 Develop protocols to ensure effective 

communication between members and officers 

in their respective roles; 

3 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/03/2022  Protocol exists and is being reviewed. 

B3 Ensure that the Council’s vision, values, 
strategic plans, priorities and targets are 
developed through robust mechanisms, and in 
consultation with the local community and 
other key stakeholders, and that they are 
clearly articulated and disseminated; 

3 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/3/2022 31/3/2022 Review concluded in 2021/22: Council Plan review 
approved by Council 22/2/22. 
Officer review of values during 2021/22 with teams. 
 

B4 In pursuing partnerships, agree a set of values 
against which decision making and actions can 
be judged in line with and having referred to 
the Partnership Register and Guidance. 

3 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/3/2022 31/3/2022 A Partnership Register exists but responsibility shifts 
means that it needs a review. Also policy behind it 
needs reinstating. 
UPDATE: Partnership Guidance is being presented to 
Audit Committee at its meeting on 8th December 2021 
for consideration and will be implemented after this. 

B5 Develop and maintain open and effective 
mechanisms for documenting evidence for 
decisions and recording the criteria, rationale 
and considerations on which decisions are 
based; 

3 All Managers   Building of relationships with portfolio holders. 
Examples SAMP board, Climate Change Action 
Group.  Actions may be dependent on the area of work 

P
age 24



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

5 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

B9, 
B10 

Overall, several Local Code provisions to 
ensure that the authority as a whole is open 
and accessible to the community, service 
users and its staff and ensure that it has a 
commitment to openness and transparency in 
all its dealings including partnerships subject 
only to the need to preserve confidentiality in 
those specific circumstances where it is proper 
and appropriate.  
 

 Operational 
Lead Support 
Services; 
Performance, 
Innovation and 
Commissioning 
Specialist 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next 12 
months. 

In progress Information governance, data quality and transparency 
will all feature as part of the Customer Connect 
Programme, particularly the implementation of the new 
digital platform. In addition, the new platform will also 
enhance communication with customers, ensure that it 
is easier to access services and gather feedback. 
Update: MyAccount launched May 2021: this formed 
an essential element of managing Covid-19 grant 
schemes. 
Implementation of development management system 
continuing. 
Full staff transition to new systems and processes 
delayed by Covid-19 and diverson of resources to 
LGR. 

B13 To ensure committee decisions are fully 
documented through the use of appropriate 
report templates, agenda submission 
processes and minutes; 

2 All Managers 31/10/2021 31/03/2022 Further training has been carried out but processes still 
need to be embedded. Council wide engagement 
needed. 
Training during 2021/22 completed and recorded so 
available in future. 

B16 Ensure that professional advice on legal and 

financial matters is available and recorded well 

in advance of decision making and used 

appropriately when decisions have significant 

legal or financial implications; 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 31/03/2022 Specific facility within all reports to Council members 
that log the advice sought from legal and finance. 
More training delivered during 2021/22 and recorded of 
how and when advice from legal and finance advice 
should be sought. 
 

B17 When working in partnership, ensure that there 

is a clear statement setting out the purpose of 

the partnership and the outputs to be 

achieved. 

3 All managers 31/03/2022 31/3/2022 Reflected in the partnership guidance to be considered 
by Audit Committee December 2021. 

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 

P
age 25



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

6 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

C7 Link service plans to agreed measures and 

targets within the Council plan; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Out of date and was being replaced by "Plan on a 
Page" but development has been delayed by LGR. 

C11 Ensure that risk management is embedded 

into the culture of the authority, with members 

and managers at all levels recognising that risk 

management is part of their job; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Although Protocols are in place, they are not always 
applied 

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes  

D1 Decide how the quality of service for users is 

to be measured and ensure that the 

information needed to review service quality 

effectively and regularly is available; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Service Plans was being replaced by "Plan to Page" 

but development has been delayed by LGR. 

D13 Partnership Framework:  

Ensure that risk management is embedded 

into the culture of the authority, with members 

and managers at all levels recognising that risk 

management is part of their job 

3 All managers 31/12/2021 31/3/2022 Reflected in the partnership guidance to be considered 
by Audit Committee December 2021. 

D14 Link service plans to agreed measures and 
targets within the Council plan (incuding Social 
Value)  
 
Set out clear financial and contract procedure 
rules, kept under review as part of the overall 
Constitution of the Council. 
 

 Strategy Lead 
Specialist; 
Performance, 
Innovation and 
Commissioning 
Specialist; 
Finance Lead 
Specialist 

31/10/2021 On-going Embedding of procurement practices into service 
planning (eg identifying contracts in plans) along with 
wider consideration of social value around delivery 
options. 
Update: A Commissioning Framework and revised 
Procurement Strategy have been approved including 
social value alongside other relevant policies such as 
climate change and biodiversity. The Commissioning 
Specialist is now in post and is reviewing the current 
activities 

P
age 26



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

7 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it  

E2 Assess the skills required by members and 

officers and make arrangements to agree a 

development plan to develop those skills and 

address any training gaps, to enable roles to 

be carried out effectively; 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

30/11/2022  Leadership Team development programme with 
external provider will conmclude in summer 2021. 
Team Leader programme has started. 
Behavioural workshops have been held with the 
majority of employees to define behaviours that help 
us meet this need.  

E3 Ensuring appropriate financial skills of Officers 

scored 3 out of 4 with some scope to make 

financial acumen requirements more explicit. 

 Finance Lead 
Specialist / 
Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 
 

CC 
commenced 
due to 
continue 
over next  12 
months 

Completed 
2021/22 

This is a medium term strategic project which also links 
in to Customer Connect. 
A programme of finance and legal training has been 
provided to all staff with recordings available. 

E5 Develop skills on a continuing basis to improve 

performance, including the ability to scrutinise 

and challenge and to recognise when outside 

expert advice is needed, in line with the 

member development strategy; 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

31/12/2021 Completed 
2021/22 

Induction process in place, with development 
opportunities boosted by recent provision of e-learning. 
Also, new Member Development Strategy currently 
going through approval process   
Your Conversation launch May 2021. Values and 
Behaviours workshops undertaken for the majority of 
staff. 

E8 Consider career structures for members and 

officers to encourage participation and 

development 

2 Chief Executive / 
All managers 

31/03/2022  Overtaken by LGR proposals/implementation. 

E9 Manage the strategic Human Resource 

Management and Organisational Development 

needs of the organisation through relevant 

policies and accreditation. 

3 Human 
Resources Lead 
Specialist 

31/10/2021  Plan on a Page development has been delayed by 
LGR. 

P
age 27



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

8 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

E14 Develop protocols to ensure effective 

communication between members and officers 

in their respective roles; 

3 Chief Executive 30/06/2022  Discussion between Chief Executive and Leader 

E15 Develop protocols to ensure that the leader 

and chief executive negotiate their respective 

roles early in their relationship and that a 

shared understanding of roles and objectives 

is maintained; 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Keeping this under review, Cabinet away days with 
Leadership Team and clarification of Council Priorities 
and roles and responsibilites relating to them. 

E16 Determine a scheme of delegated and 

reserved powers within the constitution and 

ensure that it is monitored and updated when 

required 

3 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2022 Ongoing  Contract procedure rules within the Consitiution were 
updated to streamline decision making to make it more 
agile. Report on property service deligation to improve 
decision making  to be considered by Cabinet in 
December. 

E17 Ensure effective internal control arrangements 

exist for sound financial management systems 

and processes; 

4 Section 151 
Officer 

30/06/2022  Constitution updated to reflect proposed amendments.  

E18 Establish clear channels of communication 

with all sections of the community and other 

stakeholders and put in place monitoring 

arrangements to ensure that they operate 

effectively; 

3 Strategy Lead 
Specialist 

31/03/2022  Included in parternship guidance. 

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial management 

P
age 28



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

9 
 

Local 
Code 
ref 

Local Code Measures Current 
Score  
4 high 
0 low 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

F17 Ensure performance, financial and non-

financial, is reported to senior management 

and Members including action plans where 

necessary; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  To be considered as part of Plan on a Page, 
development has been delayed by LGR. 

F18 To ensure committee decisions are fully 

documented through the use of appropriate 

report templates, agenda submission 

processes and minutes; 

3 All managers 31/10/2021  Calendar of dates for submitting, publishing and 
distributing timely reports that are adhered to 
Deadlines frequently missed or insufficient time 
allowed for preparation of comments. Training has 
been provided to ensure timely receipt of requests for 
support and advice. 

F20 Develop and maintain an effective scrutiny 

function which encourages constructive 

challenge and enhances the authority’s 

performance overall; 

4 Monitoring 
Officer 

31/03/2021 On-going Training to be provided at least annually for members 
Access to North West Employers in place for training 
and support 
Evidence of effective scrutiny in the Annual Report 
2020/2021  

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

G9 Ensure that the authority as a whole is open 

and accessible to the community, service 

users and staff and make a commitment to 

openness and transparency in all our dealings, 

including partnerships subject only to the need 

to preserve confidentiality in those specific 

circumstances where it is proper and 

appropriate to do so; 

3 Chief Executive 31/3/2022 31/12/2022 Not explicitly a community strategy but new 
partnership guidance sets out arrangements for 
accountability in partnerships. 

 

CIPFA FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT CODE ACTIONS  

P
age 29



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

10 
 

Fm 
Code 
Ref 

FM Code measure Current 
Status 
Yes /No 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

A: The leadership team is able to demonstrate that the services provided by the authority provide value for money 

A2 High-level governance and management 
arrangements exist: Effective service and 
financial planning 

N All managers 30/09/2021  Plan on a Page development  has been delayed by 
LGR. 

A4 Reviewing explicitly the ways in which these 
services are delivered or by comparing the 
authority’s own services and service 
performance with those of other authorities: 

 Efficiency reviews 

 Benchmarking 

 Peer Review 

N Section 151 
Officer 

31/03/2022  Linked to Plan on a Page development which has been 
delayed by LGR. 
Service delivery blueprints for all services have been 
prepared for the new unitary authority. 
Full financial planning process including MTFP, 5-year 
budgets and capital programme. 
 

A5 Ways in which the authority could help to 
ensure that its services are effective, in that 
they are achieving the authority’s objectives 
and meeting the needs of service users: 

 Monitoring of Performance Data 

 Service Reviews 

 User Surveys 

 External assessments 

N All managers 
 
 
 
 
Section 151 
Officer 

31/03/2022 
 
 
 
 
31/07/2022 

 Plan on a Page development has been delayed by 
LGR: link to monitoring required 
Performance Dashboard introduced for whole of 
Council 
 
Value for money policy to be prepared alongside 
Procurement Strategy update and Medium Term 
Financial Plan refresh: no MTFP for SLDC will be 
prepared for July 2022 as it is being superceeded by 
the Westmorland and Furness MTFP 

L: The authority has engaged with key stakeholders in developing its long term financial strategy, medium term financial plan and annual budget. 

L The authority has engaged with key 
stakeholders in developing its long term 
financial strategy, medium term financial plan 
and annual budget. 

N Section 151 
Officer 

28/02/2022  Overview and Scrutiny Committee invited to comment 
on draft MTFP and budget proposals.  Statutory 
business rate consultation carried out as part of budget 
setting process. 
It was planned that a public consultation methodology 
to be developed for 2022/23 budget setting process 
but this has not been progressed due to additional 
resporce requirements of LGR. 

M: The authority uses a documented option appraisal methodology to demonstrate the VFM of its decisions 

P
age 30



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

11 
 

Fm 
Code 
Ref 

FM Code measure Current 
Status 
Yes /No 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

M1 Option appraisal IFAC/PAIB Project and 
Investment Appraisal for Sustainable Value 
Creation: Principles in Project and Investment 
Appraisal  

N Section 151 
Officer 

30/07/2022  A high-level bid is required for all capital schemes, a 
full business case is requested prior to commencement 
of capital works but the format is not mandated.   
 
A business case format will be prepared to include the 
rationale for the project, capital and revenue costs, 
payback period (if applicable) and project risks. 
Procurement Strategy to be approved in    
All tenders consider VFM by considering the quality of 
service, not just the price. 
Following internal audit review, from April 2022 new 
processes have been agreed including a major project 
officer group which will meet for the first time on 27th 
June 2022. 

M3 The accounting treatment of material decisions 
is considered and demonstrated as part of the 
formal option appraisal process. 

N 

N: The leadership team takes action using reports enabling it to identify and correct emerging risks to its budget strategy and financial sustainability 

N2 All Financial monitoring reports include: 
•Accruals based financial information 
•Service performance information 

N Chief Finance 
Officer 

  Purchase ordering system produces accruals based 
purchase information,  payroll and income is on cash 
basis.   

N6 There are appropriate arrangements in place 
for reporting and managing the financial 
performance of each of the organisation’s 
delivery partnerships and collaborative 
arrangements. 

N All managers 31/3/2022  Some monitoring through contract processes, were not 
fully consolidated into main finance monitoring 
processes: will be included in 2022/23 

N7 There are appropriate arrangements in place 
for the project management and cost control of 
capital projects. 

N All managers 31/3/2022  While there is budget monitoring there has been a very 
significant level of re-profiling of capital programme 
which suggests further work is necessary.  Following 
internal audit review of projects a new methodology 
and approach is introduced from June 2022. 

O: The leadership team monitors the elements of its balance sheet which pose a significant risk to its financial stability 

P
age 31



        Appendix 3 
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT  

RECOMMENDATION IMPLEMENTATION PROGRESS REPORT 
 
 

12 
 

Fm 
Code 
Ref 

FM Code measure Current 
Status 
Yes /No 

Resp Deadline Date Impl Progress Comment 

O2 Management accounts include either a full 
balance sheet or an appropriate level of 
balance sheet information to meet business 
needs and evidence of monitoring of material 
items 

N Section 151 
Officer 

31/03/2022 31/03/2022 Internal monitoring only includes certain balance sheet 
items, mainly around debt.  Full review of balance 
sheet monitoring completed March 2022 for 
implementation during 2022/23 monitoring. 

 

P
age 32



South Lakeland District Council 

Audit Committee 

Thursday, 6th October 2022 

Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23  
 

 

Portfolio:   Not applicable 

Report from:  Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer) 

Report Author: Peter Harrison – Internal Audit Manager (Corporate Director, Risk and 
Assurance, TIAA Limited) 

Wards: Corporate Issue 

Forward Plan: Not applicable 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 This report provides a summary of the progress in delivering the Internal Audit Annual 
Plan in 2022/23. It provides the Committee with assurance through the individual 
internal audit reports for work carried out to date. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note: 

 The progress achieved in 2022/23 in completing the Audit Plan set out in 
Appendix 1. 

 Summary progress achieved in implementing recommendations from previous 
internal audit reviews set out in Appendix 2. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 1972 
Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the 
Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council’s 
senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control. 

3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control systems 
and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately managed and 
that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the system of internal 
control and should set in place policies and procedures to ensure that controls are 
operating effectively. 

4.0 Progress against the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan 

4.1   The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in April 2022.  

Page 33

Item No.7



4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of the 
position as at September 2022. 

5.0 Follow up of internal audit recommendations 

5.1 The latest summary position relating to the implementation of outstanding 
recommendations is set out in Appendix 2.   

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that 
the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its 
risk management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the 
Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS). 

7.0 Links to Council Priorities 

7.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements for 
governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of the 
Council’s strategic priorities. 

8.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

8.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report.  

Human Resources 

8.2 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report. 

Legal 

8.3 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

8.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No      

8.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental impacts. 

Equality and Diversity 

8.6 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No      

8.7 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this 
report relates to a review of corporate governance and is considered to have no 
Equality and Diversity impacts. 

Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

The Council does not comply 
with legislative requirements as 
laid out under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015. 

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the internal 
control environment.   

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter. 

Contact Officer 

Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited. 

07970 376542   peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk  

Page 34

mailto:peter.harrison@tiaa.co.uk


Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

1 Internal Audit Progress Report 

2 Summary Follow Up position 

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Not applicable Not Applicable 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services N/A 

Section 151 Officer 26/09/2022 

Monitoring Officer 27/09/2022 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Finance Lead Specialist 26/09/2022 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee 06/10/2022 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 
 

 
 

Internal Audit 
 

September 2022 

 

 

 
 

APPENDIX 1 

APPEND IX 1 

 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report  

 2022/23 

FINAL 

P
age 37



 

 

 
 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 1 
 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance 

Introduction 

1. This summary controls assurance report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control related issues and the progress of 

our work at South Lakeland District Council as at 26th September 2022. 

Emerging Governance, Risk and Internal Control Related Issues 

2. According to the United Nations (UN) World Commission on Environment and Development, environmental sustainability is about acting in a way that ensures future generations 

have the natural resources available to live an equal, if not better, way of life as the current generations. 

The world is now looking towards a vital global goal: net-zero. According to climate science it is essential that we meet this target by 2050 if we are to give ourselves a chance of 

limiting global warming and avoiding the most catastrophic impacts of climate change. The UK’s Climate Change Act 2008 sets the framework for how the UK will manage and 

respond to the threat of climate change. Under the Act, the UK must reduce total GHG emissions by at least 78% below 1990 levels by 2035 and reach net zero by 2050. 

Since 1st October 2013 the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 has required all UK quoted companies to report on their greenhouse gas 

emissions as part of their annual Directors’ Report. Increasingly, organisations are seeking information from their suppliers on greenhouse gas emissions, and as a result, many 

small businesses will be expected to measure and report on their emissions. 

 

At TIAA, we have been taking this seriously for a number of years and are proud to have been accredited to the Green Dragon Environmental 

Certification since 2012, achieving Standard 3 in February 2022. Through our accreditation with Green Dragon, we understand our baseline 

emissions, set annual targets in order to reduce our impact and are focussed on implementing our most straight forward carbon reduction 

opportunities in the near future, before tackling longer term, more complex issues that may require cooperative working with other 

organisations. 

 

P
age 38



 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 2 
 

Audits completed since the last SICA report to the Audit Committee 

3. There have been no audits finalised since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee. 

Progress against the 2022/23 Annual Plan 

4. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2022/23 is set out in Appendix A. 

Changes to the Annual Plan 2022/23 

5. There are no changes proposed to the Annual Plan at this time, however, an additional review of Payroll is to be undertaken at the request of the Finance Lead Specialist and S151 

Officer. 

Progress in actioning priority 1 recommendations 

6. We have not made any Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately) since the previous SICA.  

Frauds/Irregularities 

7. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities in the period since the last SICA report was issued. 

Other Matters 

8. We have issued a number of briefing notes and fraud digests, shown in Appendix B, since the previous SICA report.  

Responsibility/Disclaimer 

9. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. The matters 

raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No responsibility to any third party 

is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive 

this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

--------------- 

  

P
age 39



 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 3 
 

Appendix A 

Progress against Annual Plan 

 

System 
Planned 

Quarter 
Current Status Comments 

Risk Management 1 Complete Final Report Issued 

Data Integrity 1 Planned Start Date 26th October 2022  

Development Control 1 Proposed Start Date 7th November 2022  

Procurement 2 Planned Start Date 10th October 2022  

Income Management – Car Parking 2 Planned Date 15th November 2022  

Land Charges and Building Control 2 Site Work Commenced  

Council Tax Rebate Payments 2 Site Work Commenced  

NNDR 3 Planned Start Date 18th January 2023  

Disabled Facilities Grant 3 Planned Start Date 23rd November 2022  

Cash Receipting  3 Planned Start Date 9th December 2022  

ICT – Asset Management 3 Proposed Start Date 11th January 2023  

Main Accounting System 4 Planned Start Date 1st December 2022  

Business Continuity 4 Planned Start Date 19th December 2022  

Follow Up 1 - 4 Ongoing Next report to September Audit Committee 

KEY: 

 

 To be commenced   Site work commenced   Draft report issued   Final report issued 

P
age 40



 

 
 

 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Summary Internal Controls Assurance (SICA) Report 

 

 

Page 4 
 

Appendix B 

Briefings on developments in Governance, Risk and Control 

TIAA produces regular briefing notes to summarise new developments in Governance, Risk and Control which may have an impact on our clients. These are shared with clients and made 

available through our Online Client Portal. A summary list of those CBNs issued in the last three months which may be of relevance to South Lakeland District Council is given below. Copies 

of any CBNs are available on request from your local TIAA team. 

Summary of recent Client Briefing Notes (CBNs) 

CBN Ref Subject Status TIAA Comments 

CBN - 22023 
UK Government reveals new Data Protection 

rules 

 

Action Required: For Information Only 

Audit Committees and Boards / Governing Bodies are advised to familiarise themselves 

with the response document in line with current Data Protection practices. 

CBN - 22024 
ICO sets out revised approach to Public Sector 

enforcement 

 

Action Required: For Information Only 

Audit Committees and Boards / Governing Bodies are advised to note this information. 

CBN - 22026 
Rise in Environmental, Social and Governance 

and supply chain fraud 

 

For Information Only  

Audit Committees and Boards / Governing Bodies are advised to note the outcome of the 

survey. 

CBN - 22030 

Government Response – Consultation on 

extending National Fraud Initiative data 

matching to new purposes 

 

No Action required 

For information only to Audit Committees and Boards / Governing Bodies. 

. 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 42



 

 

 

 

Internal Audit 
 

September 2022 

 

   

 

 
 

 

 

South Lakeland District Council 

 Follow Up Review 

 2022/23 

FINAL 

P
age 43



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of the recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed below at 

South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in September 2022. 

Review Year Date Presented to Audit Committee 

Follow-up – July 2022 2022/23 28th July 2022 

Project Management 2021/22 28th July 2022 

Administration of Grants 2021/22 28th July 2022 

Risk Management 2022/23 28th July 2022 

Key Findings & Action Points 

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of these 

recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations of the progress of 

the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

Evaluation Number of Recommendations 

Implemented 8 

Outstanding 29 

Considered but not Implemented / No longer applicable - 

Not Implemented - 

3. The key issue identified is that although there has been some slippage, most recently due to COVID-19 and LGR, recommendations continue to be implemented. Of the 37 

recommendations in this report, 22% have been implemented. Of the 29 recommendations that remain outstanding, 79% are due to slippage beyond the original implementation 

date and 21% are because the original implementation date has not yet arrived. 

P
age 44



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 2 

 

Scope and Limitations of the Review  

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and established the extent to which management 

has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations. 

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and 

weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, although the audit 

procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control may not be proof against collusive 

fraud. 

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the 

authenticity of these documents. 

Disclaimer 

7. The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the auditor during the course of our work and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all 

the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole 

or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other 

purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of 

whatsoever nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report. 

Release of Report 

8. The table below sets out the history of this report. 

Date draft report issued: 8th September 2022 

Date management responses rec’d: 22nd September 2022 

Date final report issued: 26th September 2022 

 

P
age 45



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 3 

 

Executive Summary 

Follow Up 

9. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations and limited testing has been carried out to confirm these management 

representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented: 

10. Follow-up – July 2022 

Audit title Licensing – Premises & Clubs Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Statement of Licensing Policy be amended to reflect the current application routes. 

Initial management response The policy is set by statutory guidance from the Home Office, underpinning this there is an EU service provision directive requiring on line applications and 

payments. The current IT suppliers do not provide this capability and we have already recognised this as a significant weakness in the current system and is one of 

the main IT requirements in the new IT solution.  This is a key finding of the gap analysis. Due to the work involved and the cost we propose action is deferred until 

the new IT product is delivered. 

Responsible Officer/s Principal Specialist (Health & 

Environment) 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2018 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/10/2021 

31/12/2021 

31/05/2022 

31/08/2022 

Latest Update The Principal Specialist (Health & Environment) previously advised that the action remains outstanding but that progress has been made with higher priority 

application forms, several of which are due to go live before end of March 2022 (TENs, Hackney Carriage Vehicle, Private Hire Vehicle). These will be followed by 

driver applications as the next priority. No further update was provided during this review. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 46



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 4 

 

Audit title Awarding of Grants Audit year 2017/18 Priority 2 

Recommendation An overarching policy on the provision of financial aid be approved which addresses any potential provision of State Aid. 

Initial management response Following completion of the review recommended at point 10 above, an overarching policy can be prepared which will set out the broad principles to be taken into 

account when entering into grant arrangements with an economic activity. This will be completed within 3 months of completion of recommendation 10. 

Responsible Officer/s Legal, Governance and 

Democratic Services Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2020 

31/03/2021 

31/12/2021 

30/09/2022 

Latest Update Draft documentation regarding the Subsidy Control regime and compliance has been prepared and a workshop was held in February 2021 with relevant officers to 

discuss principles/approach. The draft documentation was put on hold in order to align with the new UK-wide subsidy control regime, outlined in the Subsidy 

Control Act 2022. The Act received Royal Assent on 28th April 2022; however, most of the Act has not yet entered into force (anticipated to come into effect autumn 

2022). Some elements of the new regime are not yet defined and are expected to be implemented via secondary legislation and guidance. Legal Specialists are 

working with external specialist advisers to review the draft documentation previously prepared to update and reflect the provisions of the 2022 Act. This may be 

subject to further minor update as the final elements of the regime are confirmed and come into force. The proposed new implementation date is subject to the 

legislation coming into effect in the Autumn and further updates will be provided as necessary. For this review, the Legal, Governance and Democratic Services 

Specialist advised that the recommendation remains on track to meet its new implementation date of 31/10/2022. 

New implementation date 31/10/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Debtors Audit year 2018/19 Priority 2 

Recommendation Procedures be amended to highlight the importance of the existing mitigating controls that address the risk that a separation of duties does not exist between the 

person raising and the person authorising a sales invoice and the risk that authorisation levels for sales invoices are not defined. 

Initial management response There are an increasing proportion of invoices raised through interfaces from other systems, particularly for rents from the Technology Forge system which would 

complicate the approval process. The Customer Connect programme includes a full review of all processes. This recommendation will be considered as part of that 

review. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/03/2019 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2020 

30/06/2021 

30/11/2021 

31/01/2022 

Latest Update This task has now been taken over by the Finance Lead Specialist who advised that this will be addressed as part of the design of day 1 services for the Westmorland 

and Furness Council. 

New implementation date 31/03/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 47



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 5 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 1 

Recommendation A guidance procedure be developed to provide responsible officers with a framework for managing and monitoring their contracts. 

Initial management response Noted that this is the case. Updated guidance procedure to be developed and implemented in line with recommendations 11 and 9. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist & 

Procurement Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/05/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/12/2020 

31/12/2021 

31/01/2022 

30/04/2022 

31/08/2022 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist previously stated that procurement regulations have been updated and the guidance is in progress but there is further slight slippage. 

No further update was provided during this review. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Contract Management Audit year 2019/20 Priority 2 

Recommendation The contract management and procedure documents be updated to reflect the new procurement and contract management processes within the Council. 

Initial management response Noted and agreed. There is conflicting policy information which is leading to poor practice. Currently liaising with Strategy Specialist. 

Responsible Officer/s Procurement Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2020 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/05/2021 

31/10/2021 

31/01/2022 

30/04/2022 

31/08/2022 

Latest Update The Procurement Specialist previously stated that these are being currently revised, as Procurement Procedure Rules have been published. No further update was 

provided during this review. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 
 
 

P
age 48



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 6 

 

Audit title Insurance Audit year 2020/21 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Annual Renewal of Insurance Contract Procedure be updated. 

Initial management response Accepted, work will be undertaken in the summer to update policy and procedures. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Specialist and Deputy 

S151 Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Finance Specialist and Deputy S151 Officer has advised that the process will be reviewed and updated as the annual renewal process is carried out over the 

next three to six months and is now being incorporated into the processes for LGR. 

New implementation date 31/03/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 
 

 

Audit title Asset Management Audit year 2020/21 Priority 2 

Recommendation A set of procedure notes be prepared which cover all aspects of fixed asset management including the following: accounting and depreciation; maintenance and 

repairs; security and insurance; investment and budgeting; verification and audit; valuation and impairment cycles by asset class; and asset management systems 

used. 

Initial management response Agreed. A multi-disciplinary group has meet to discuss the practicality of this. Initially the procedure notes will concentrate on the higher-value assets, with some 

assets prepared later (e.g. museum collection). 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist supported 

by IT Shared Service Manager 

and Operational Lead for Delivery 

and Commercial Services 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/03/2022 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist has stated that Officers have met and agreed the process and some elements of the task are completed. Additional requests related to 

LGR may reduce the resources available to fully conclude this recommendation and it is now more likely to be completed by the end of the financial year. 

New implementation date 31/03/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 49



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 7 

 

Audit title Procurement Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation In compliance with the Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015, procurement information be published on a quarterly basis. 

In line with a recommendation of the Local Government Transparency Code 2015, consideration be given to publishing this data at least monthly. 

Initial management response The Specialist-Performance, Innovation and Commissioning will look at the process for publication with the Caseworker for Freedom of Information. URL links will 

be tested and the information will be published on a quarterly basis. Monthly publication has been considered, but may be unachievable due to LGR workload 

issues. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist –Performance, 

Innovation and Commissioning 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

01/04/2022 

Latest Update The Specialist –Performance, Innovation and Commissioning advised that In line with Local Government (Transparency Requirements) (England) Regulations 2015 

procurement information will be published on the Council website. Work will continue with the Caseworker for Freedom of Information, Business Process Analysts 

and Web Development Team. URL links will be tested and the information will be published on a quarterly basis in readiness for the start of 2022/23 financial year. 

The revised date reflects the day 1 requirements for the creation of Westmorland and Furness and Cumberland Councils respectively. The recommendation forms 

part of the overall Delivery Plan for the Information Governance and Records Management LGR work package that is part of the Corporate and Enabling Services 

Workstream. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The overarching Data Protection Policy be updated to include the hierarchy of documentation to highlight supporting guidance, protocols, procedures and policies. 

Initial management response Agree – Data Protection Policy to be updated to include the hierarchy of documentation across all data protection and information governance framework 

documents. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

01/06/2022 

Latest Update The overarching Policy will be updated to include the hierarchy of documentation to highlight supporting guidance, protocols, procedures and policies in line with 

the Shadow Authority arrangements and Part 3 18(2)(e) and (f) of the Cumbria (Structural Changes ) Order 2022. The revised date reflects the day 1 requirements 

for the creation of Westmorland and Furness and Cumberland Councils respectively. The recommendation forms part of the overall Delivery Plan for the 

Information Governance and Records Management LGR work package that is part of the Corporate and Enabling Services Workstream. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 50



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 8 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The review and maintenance of the RoPA and IAR be conducted annually as stated in the Information Data Audit procedure. 

Initial management response Agree – current RoPA and IAR to be reviewed. Procedural documentation to be established to ensure annual review and maintenance is stated and implemented. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

01/06/2022 

Latest Update In accordance with approved Procurement Schedule – CEX/129 – as approved at Cabinet 03/02/2021: “Develop a Council wide Business Classification Scheme 

(BCS). A platform for an improved information architecture forming an essential component of the information governance framework. A fit for purpose BCS to 

enhance activity: Grouping information; supporting retrieval of records relating to a function or activity; assigning access rights and security protection and assigning 

retention periods and disposal.” The revised date reflects the day 1 requirements for the creation of Westmorland and Furness and Cumberland Councils 

respectively. The recommendation forms part of the overall Delivery Plan for the Information Governance and Records Management LGR work package that is part 

of the Corporate and Enabling Services Workstream. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation A general description of technical and organisational security measures be included within SLDC's processing documentation. 

Initial management response Agree – current RoPA to be reviewed. Procedural documentation to be established to ensure annual review and maintenance is stated and implemented. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

01/06/2022 

Latest Update In accordance with approved Procurement Schedule – CEX/129 – as approved at Cabinet 03/02/2021: Develop a Council wide Business Classification Scheme (BCS). 

A platform for an improved information architecture forming an essential component of the information governance framework. A fit for purpose BCS to enhance 

activity: Grouping information; supporting retrieval of records relating to a function or activity; assigning access rights and security protection and assigning 

retention periods and disposal. The revised date reflects the day 1 requirements for the creation of Westmorland and Furness and Cumberland Councils 

respectively. The recommendation forms part of the overall Delivery Plan for the Information Governance and Records Management LGR work package that is part 

of the Corporate and Enabling Services Workstream. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

not been met. 

 

P
age 51



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 9 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation Subject Access Requests be completed within the required one month timescale or an extension agreed. 

Initial management response Agree – Subject Access Request protocol and procedures to be updated in line with recommendation. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

01/06/2022 

Latest Update The revised date reflects the day 1 requirements for the creation of Westmorland and Furness and Cumberland Councils respectively. The recommendation forms 

part of the overall Delivery Plan for the Information Governance and Records Management LGR work package that is part of the Corporate and Enabling Services 

Workstream. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Information Governance Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The responsibility for cover of the DPO's duties when unavailable be delegated and documented. 

Initial management response Agree – DPO delegated duties to be documented. Details to be approved through SLDC Information Governance Board. 

Responsible Officer/s Performance, Innovation and 

Commissioning Specialist 

Original implementation 

date 

01/04/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The revised date reflects the day 1 requirements for the creation of Westmorland and Furness and Cumberland Councils respectively. The recommendation forms 

part of the overall Delivery Plan for the Information Governance and Records Management LGR work package that is part of the Corporate and Enabling Services 

Workstream. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Treasury Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The contract with Link Treasury Services Limited, which ended on 31st March 2021, be formally extended to cover the ongoing service provision. 

Initial management response This was overlooked during a busy period. The contract will be formally extended as soon as possible. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

31/12/2021 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/05/2022 

31/08/2022 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist advised that this recommendation remains outstanding. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 52



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 10 

 

Audit title Treasury Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation The Council's Treasury Management Practices be updated and then reviewed periodically. 

Initial management response Will be included as part of the approval process for the 2022/23 Treasury Management Strategy to be considered by Council in February 2022. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Specialist and Deputy 

s151 Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

22/02/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

31/07/2022 

31/08/2022 

Latest Update The Finance Specialist and Deputy s151 Officer advised that due to LGR this is not a priority and will be considered by the new LA in due course. 

New implementation date 01/04/2023 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Licensing – Taxis Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The Council's position be clarified regarding the situation of a person continuing to drive a private hire vehicle or a hackney carriage whilst holding a driving licence 

that has expired. 

Initial management response SLDC accepts this recommendation and will proceed to implement. 

Responsible Officer/s Sean Hall – Principal Specialist 

Health and Environment 

Original implementation 

date 

01/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Principal Specialist Health and Environment provided a detailed update of ongoing progress and suggested a slight revision to the original implementation 

date. 

New implementation date 26/08/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Licensing – Taxis Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Documents required by the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy that become due for renewal be sought on a timely basis. 

Initial management response SLDC accepts this recommendation and will proceed to implement. 

Responsible Officer/s Sean Hall – Principal Specialist 

Health and Environment 

Original implementation 

date 

01/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Principal Specialist Health and Environment provided a detailed update of ongoing progress and suggested a slight revision to the original implementation 

date. 

New implementation date 26/08/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 53



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 11 

 

Audit title Licensing – Taxis Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation A periodic independent review of a sample of additions and amendments to a driver record in the taxi licensing software be implemented. 

Initial management response SLDC accepts this recommendation and will proceed to implement. 

Responsible Officer/s Sean Hall – Principal Specialist 

Health and Environment 

Original implementation 

date 

01/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Principal Specialist Health and Environment provided a detailed update of ongoing progress and suggested a slight revision to the original implementation 

date. 

New implementation date 26/08/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

11. Project Management 

Audit title Project Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation A standard, core folder structure be agreed and implemented for projects, holding all relevant documents related to that project. 

Initial management response This recommendation is fully accepted. Work will be undertaken with the ‘community of practice’ of project managers to develop document management to ensure 

that all appropriate documents on projects are accessible through SharePoint. This may using involve a more intuitive system than SharePoint. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (PIC) Original implementation 

date 

01/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Specialist – Performance, Innovation & Commissioning advised that a Capital Programme Monitoring Group has been established, meeting monthly. The 

Group’s membership comprises officers who are responsible for delivering projects, representatives from finance and legal, members of leadership team and the 

directors. The two directors have overall responsibility for the programme. The Group is supported by the Principal Officer for Performance, Commissioning and 

Innovation and the Specialist Officer for Innovation. A central location for project documentation needs to be discussed with the Group. Given the level of resource 

required to establish this, one other option is to provide links with in the capital programme timeline document to where the various services currently store their 

documentation. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

P
age 54



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 12 

 

Audit title Project Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation A prescribed, flexible project management framework be followed as far as is practicable. Exceptions be formally approved. Training be provided as required. 

Initial management response This recommendation is accepted. The existing corporate approach will be considered with the ‘community of practice’ to confirm the framework, with 

amendments and updates being made as agreed. This will cover the growing use of ‘Agile’ methods alongside more traditional PRINCE-related frameworks. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (PIC) Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update It is anticipated that the recommendation will be addressed via the recently established Capital Programme Monitoring Group. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Project Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Performance Indicators relevant to the project management function be developed and reported within the quarterly Council Plan Performance Monitoring reports. 

Initial management response This recommendation is fully accepted. This will be undertaken as a matter of some urgency alongside the refresh of SLDC’ Portfolio Management approach, and 

the development of a ‘shadow’ performance management framework for Westmorland & Furness Council. The report’s suggested areas for indicators are 

welcomed and will form the basis of thinking.  

Responsible Officer/s Principal Specialist (PIC) Original implementation 

date 

01/07/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update It is anticipated that the recommendation will be addressed via the recently established Capital Programme Monitoring Group. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

Audit title Project Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation The SharePoint site “Programmes and Projects” be further developed and fully completed. 

Initial management response This recommendation is fully accepted. The improvements will be undertaken in tandem with actions for recommendation number 1. The site will cover the growing 

use of ‘Agile’ methods alongside more traditional PRINCE-related frameworks. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (PIC) Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Specialist – Performance, Innovation & Commissioning advised that the project SharePoint site hasn’t be developed any further. Officers at the Capital 

Programme Monitoring Group have input their ideas for how it could be developed and this will be looked at in the coming months. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

P
age 55



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 13 

 

 

Audit title Project Management Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation All projects be stored within a common network location, with appropriate access rights granted to Officers or teams. 

Initial management response This recommendation is fully accepted. The improvements will be undertaken in tandem with actions for recommendation number 1. To be discussed as part of 

the community of practice approach. 

Responsible Officer/s Specialist (PIC) Original implementation 

date 

01/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Specialist – Performance, Innovation & Commissioning advised that a central location for project documentation needs to be discussed with the Capital 

Programme Monitoring Group. Given the level of resource required to establish this, one other option is to provide links with in the capital programme timeline 

document to where the various services currently store their documentation. 

New implementation date 30/11/2022 Status Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date 

has not been met. 

 

12. Administration of Grants 

Audit title Administration of Grants Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Generic procedures be documented to ensure that a consistent control framework is applied to grant claim submissions. This might take the form of a standard 

checklist based on key controls for external funding listed in the Constitution, and would be supported by detailed generic and departmental procedures. 

Initial management response There is overlap between the control procedures required for the management of partnership and the management of grants. New protocols for partnerships were 

approved by Audit Committee in December 2021 and these will be used as the basis for guidance on grants, which will then be made available through the new 

finance self-serve SharePoint site. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist advised that the partnerships guidance is now on the self-serve SharePoint site and they will now be working on the grant guidance. It 

is still expected to achieve the deadline of 30/09/2022. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Recommendation is on track to meet its original target 

date. 

 

P
age 56



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 14 

 

Audit title Administration of Grants Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation It be ensured that the Internal Grant Approval Form includes sign-off from the grant lead and the legal department to confirm that grant conditions are reasonable; 

conditions can be met; and are summarised on the approval form. Responsibility for monitoring and reporting and its frequency be recorded on the form and 

assigned to individuals. 

Initial management response Many grants are for de minimus values (under £10k) and/or are automatically awarded to the Council so there is no grant acceptance process. However, in order 

to create a budget in the financial ledger system, the virement process as set out in the Financial Procedure Rules is followed (to create a net-zero budget 

amendment to increase grant income budget and also increase expenditure budgets). For grants that are not de minimus then a similar process will be followed to 

ensure documentation is received and uploaded in the virement request including consultation with colleagues from the legal team before the virement is 

approved. This will be included in the grant processes in recommendation 1. Work is already started on capturing conditions around monitoring and reporting of 

existing material grants received as part of the LGR implementation process. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist advised that the partnerships guidance is now on the self-serve SharePoint site and they will now be working on the grant guidance. It 

is still expected to achieve the deadline of 30/09/2022. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Recommendation is on track to meet its original target 

date. 

 

Audit title Administration of Grants Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation To ensure that grant income is only pursued for activities or services the Council prioritises: Departmental objectives be demonstrably linked to Council objectives; 

and, Operational Leads sign a standard Internal Grant Approval Form to evidence that the link to Council objectives has been made. 

Initial management response As previously noted, not all grants are awarded following a bidding process with many awarded automatically. The processes agreed in recommendation 1 will 

include this requirement. Where a grant is part of a budget growth bid then this process is already followed. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist advised that the partnerships guidance is now on the self-serve SharePoint site and they will now be working on the grant guidance. It 

is still expected to achieve the deadline of 30/09/2022. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Recommendation is on track to meet its original target 

date. 

 

P
age 57



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 15 

 

Audit title Administration of Grants Audit year 2021/22 Priority 2 

Recommendation Procedures to detail how monitoring and reporting of financial and operational progression of grants and for a department's portfolio of grants be fully documented 

and implemented. 

Initial management response This will be incorporated into performance and financial monitoring processes. 

Responsible Officer/s Finance Lead Specialist Original implementation 

date 

30/09/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Finance Lead Specialist advised that the partnerships guidance is now on the self-serve SharePoint site and they will now be working on the grant guidance. It 

is still expected to achieve the deadline of 30/09/2022. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Recommendation is on track to meet its original target 

date. 

 

Audit title Administration of Grants Audit year 2021/22 Priority 3 

Recommendation A consistent filing system be developed headed by standard information to be recorded about the grant and a list of documents held on the file which evidence 

the implementation of the controls referred to in the Constitution. 

Initial management response While the aspiration is reasonable, it is most unlikely that this will be developed before 31/03/2023. Therefore this will be included in processes to be implemented 

by the Westmorland and Furness Council. 

Responsible Officer/s S151 Officer, Westmorland and 

Furness Council 

Original implementation 

date 

30/06/2023 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update In view of the original implementation date that was set, no further update was sought during this review. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Recommendation is on track to meet its original target 

date. 

 

P
age 58



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 16 

 

13. Risk Management 

Audit title Risk Management Audit year 2022/23 Priority 2 

Recommendation In compliance with the Risk Management Process 2022, each Member for whom risk management training has essential status be required to undertake such 

training as is considered sufficient to meet the risk management responsibilities pertaining to their roles. 

Initial management response The approach to training has been reviewed - this has identified an additional option for Members to access recorded training online. This additional option is now 

a part of the Risk Management Training Programme - with recorded training to be made available from 01/09/2022 and with the aim of all members receiving 

training by 01/12/2022. 

Responsible Officer/s Case Management Support 

Services Officer 

Original implementation 

date 

01/12/2022 Revised implementation 

date(s) 

- 

Latest Update The Case Management Officer advised that the recommendation remains on track to meet its original target date. 

New implementation date - Status Outstanding Recommendation is on track to meet its original target 

date. 

  

P
age 59



 

 
South Lakeland District Council 

Follow Up Review  
Page 17 

 

14. The following recommendations have been implemented. 

Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible 

Officer 

Due Date 

Administration of Grants As planned, a full list of grants received and being monitored by the Council be 

documented. In the future, this be populated by information provided on standard forms 

completed by the members of staff who have claimed the grant. 

2 Finance Lead Specialist 30/09/2022 

Budgetary Control The link to the Medium Term Financial Plan on the Financial Planning page of the Council's 

website be updated to reference the current version of the MTFP. 

3 Finance Lead Specialist 31/01/2022 

Budgetary Control Paragraph 4 of the Financial Procedure Rules be clarified to confirm that a reference in 

quarterly budget monitoring reports to "Outturn Projections" refers to and complies with 

the Rules' requirement to show "projected income and expenditure compared with the 

budget". 

3 Finance Lead Specialist 31/03/2022 

Contract Management A standard format for all contract files be developed including a contract risk register. 2 Procurement Specialist 31/05/2020 

Customer Connect – ‘My Account’ Privacy Impact Assessments be completed for My Account and the ESB technology 

platform including any other related or interfacing systems. 

2 Head of Shared ICT 

Operational Lead for 

Customer and Locality 

30/03/2022 

Customer Connect – ‘ My Account’ The arrangements for system(s) ownership and information / system security be agreed 

and formalised. This could be based around a hierarchy of responsibilities including the 

retention of the RAPID, ‘Design Authority’ decision making process. 

2 Head of Shared ICT 

Operational Lead for 

Customer and Locality 

30/03/2022 

Project Management The project management function be overseen centrally by a named Officer or Team. 1 Principal Specialist (PIC) 01/07/2022 

Project Management The quarterly Capital Programme Monitoring reports presented to Cabinet and to Council 

be enhanced by: including a forecast outturn column; including a forecast variance column; 

providing sufficient details of variances to allow proper scrutiny and challenge; and 

assigning a unique Code for each Scheme. 

2 Finance Lead Specialist 01/07/2022 

 

P
age 60


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee 2022/23 Work Programme (October 2022)
	6 Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2021/22
	Audited Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 2021/22  - Appendix 3

	7 Internal Audit Progress Report 2022/23 (October 2022)
	South Lakeland DC-Internal Audit Progress Report-September 2022-f APPENDIX 1
	South Lakeland DC-Internal Audit Progress Report-September 2022-Appendix 2 Follow Up-Sept 2022


